
MINUTES 
RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

April 2, 2002 
  
  

There was a meeting held at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, April 2, 2002, of the Randolph County Planning 
Board in the Commissioner’s Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, 
Asheboro, North Carolina. 
  
1. Chairman Maxton McDowell called to order the Randolph County Planning Board meeting at 6:30 

p.m. 
  
2.                 Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the Members: Maxton McDowell, Chairman, present; 

Bill Dorsett, Vice Chairman, present; Lynden Craven, present; Al Morton, present; Phil Ridge, present; 
Larry Brown, present; Chris McLeod, present; and Mark Brower, Alternate, absent. 

  
3. Brown made the motion, seconded by Craven, to approve the minutes of the March 5, 2002 Randolph 

County Planning Board meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
4. REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING: 
  

A. GARY WHITE, Archdale, North Carolina, is requesting that 148.80 acres located on Racine 
Road, Providence Township, Polecat Creek Watershed, be rezoned from Residential Agricultural 
to Residential Exclusive Rural Lot Subdivision.  Parcel ID # 7787005383.  The proposed zoning 
district would specifically allow a 43-lot subdivision for site-built homes only with a minimum 
house size of 1,600 sq. ft. 

  
Johnson advised the Board that this was the first major residential subdivision request to come 
before the Board since the adoption of the new Growth Management Plan and related zoning 
ordinance amendments by the County Commissioners in February 2002.  Johnson said the 
request was for a new Rural Lot Exclusive subdivision.  Each lot was at least 3 acres with a 
width to depth ratio of no greater than 1 to 4.  Appropriate 50 ft. undisturbed natural buffers were 
shown on the plat adjacent to streams.  Johnson said the new subdivision also includes a 100 ft. 
setback for new well locations along the perimeter of the property bordering active farming 
operations.  Johnson reviewed with the Board the new Development Impact Analysis that had 
been prepared by the planning staff relative to facility impacts of the new subdivision.  Johnson 
said a neighborhood information meeting had already been held as required by the new Growth 
Management Plan.  Johnson said this was to give citizens an additional opportunity to review 
the proposal and ask questions or express concerns.  Johnson said 2 citizens attended this 
meeting and 2 others had stopped by the planning office to review plans.  Johnson reminded the 
Board that the County Commissioners had established 3 acres as the minimum “large lot” 
standard for Rural Lot subdivisions.  This request had been considered several months ago for 
112 one-acre lots, and the Rural Lot subdivision has reduced this density by two thirds. 

  
White was not present for this meeting. 

  
Clarence Reynolds, Racine Road, said that he has concerns that the information about traffic 
counts and student population were not correct.  Reynolds said that he would like the Board to 
consider the number of developments that have been approved in this area and have not been 
completed.  Reynolds discussed concerns for the creek running through the property.  Reynolds 



also said that he didn’t feel the County Schools Deputy Superintendent Jerry Shackleford was 
right with the number of students being projected. 

  
Possum Ledbetter, Hwy 22 North, said that his main concern was the water and sewer.  
Ledbetter said that if you continue to put sewer in the ground it will get in the water.  Ledbetter 
said this is a farming community and all these subdivisions would increase property taxes. 

  
Robert Reynolds, 2219 Providence Church Road, said this area is growing with just one 
development after another.  Reynolds said this plan is better (than the first proposal), but we need 
to require 5-acre lots instead of 3 acres.  Reynolds said this is just too much change too fast. 
Chairman McDowell commented that the issue of large-lot size had been debated at length 
during the past few years and at public hearings.  The County Commissioners had established 3 
acres as the minimum standard for Rural Lot subdivisions being located in Rural Growth areas.  
This large lot size would reduce density in rural areas. 

  
Dorsett questioned if there is enough useable land on lot 24 after allowing for the 50-ft. stream 
buffering requirements.  Johnson said the 3-acre tract size would allow for a residence to be 
located outside of the stream buffer area.   

  
McLeod said the subdivision proposal appears to meet all the requirements of the new Growth 
Management Plan and zoning revisions. 

  
Morton and Brown commented that the proposal meets all the new standards, and that it was 
good for the Board and for landowners to have the guidance that the new Growth Management 
Plan provides, and that the Board should be consistent in its approval of development projects 
that meet the new guidelines. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Brown, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved as consistent with the Growth Management Plan.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  
B. LARRY WELCH, Archdale, North Carolina, is requesting that 9.50 acres located on Cedar 

Square Road, New Market Township, Randleman Lake Watershed, be rezoned from Residential 
Agricultural to Rural Business Overlay/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID # 7737350290.  The 
proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow an indoor riding academy in 
a 23,000 sq. ft. building to be constructed on site with additional barns. 

  
Eddie MacEldowney, surveyor, and Welch were present.  Welch said the facility would be 
used for horse shows, horse riding, and horse sales.   

  
Johnson said the only calls the office has received have been concerns that the request would be 
for a mobile home park. 

  
MacEldowney discussed the parking facilities and Welch explained that the hours of operation 
would not be past 8:00 p.m. at night.  Welch said the facility would be used mostly on the 
weekends.  Welch said they would hold large horse auctions three to four times a year.  
Dominick Orlando, Contractor, discussed the site and the proposed facility.  Orlando said they 
have met with the Fire Marshal and Chief Building Inspector to discuss the plans.   

  
Welch said he would like to see the entire facility completed by September. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 



  
Dorsett said he didn’t think there could be a more appropriate location for this type facility. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved as consistent with the Growth Management Plan.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  
C. PEGGY MORPHIS, Seagrove, North Carolina, is requesting that 18.07 acres located on Erect 

Road, Brower Township, be rezoned from Residential Restricted to Residential 
Agricultural/Conditional Use.  Parcel ID # 8604948482.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning 
District would specifically allow the placement of a single-wide mobile home on the property.  
Property Owner: Rilla Kiser Hussey. 

  
Eddie Morphis said they were wanting to place a mobile home here for their daughter to be 
close to her grandmother.  Morphis said that his daughter is a single mother and her grandfather 
died last year, and this would be good for both her and her grandmother.   

  
Johnson said this is a lower density area that probably should have been zoned RA in 1987 
when the Piedmont Triad Council of Governments did the original zoning maps. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Brown, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved as consistent with the Growth Management Plan.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  
5. SWEARING IN OF THE WITNESSES: 
  

“Do you swear or affirm that the information you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth, so help you God?” 

  
Seven people took this Oath. 

  
6. SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUESTS: 
  

A. MICHAEL AND ELAINE MCPHERSON, Asheboro, North Carolina, are requesting a 
Special Use Permit to obtain a gun dealers license and operate a gunsmith and archery shop in an 
existing 26 x 42 building located at their residence at 2797 Mack Road on 0.70 acres, Cedar 
Grove Township, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 7648369178. 

  
McPherson said at one time the building was used for a body shop.  McPherson said that this 
new business would be a one-person operation.  McPherson said  he had contacted the adjoining 
land owners, and they have no problems with the business. 

  
Morton asked how long he operated the body shop, and McPherson said the building has been 
used for approximately 15 years. 

  
Craven asked if he would be repairing any guns.  McPherson said no, but he would be putting 
scopes on guns.  Craven asked if there would be any reason for firing guns.  McPherson said 
no, but he does shoot on the property. 

  
There was no one present in opposition. 



  
Morton made the motion, seconded by Brown, to approve this request for a Special Use Permit.  
The motion passed unanimously. 

  
B. LARRY SHACKLEFORD, Randleman, North Carolina, is requesting a Special Use Permit to 

allow an automotive sales business in an existing 28 x 32 building (with a 5 car display area) 
located at their residence at 3015 Morningdew Drive on 3.73 acres, Back Creek Township, 
Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 7744105429. 

  
Shackleford was present and said he wanted to wholesale cars.  Shackleford said there would be 
no repair of vehicles and no junk car storage.  Shackleford said the license would be used to buy 
and resell cars.  Shackleford said he has a full-time job and this would be a part-time business.  
Shackleford said that any car he purchased would not be here more than a week or so, and he 
would have no more than 5 cars for the business at any one time. 

  
Brown told Shackleford that if there were private restrictions on the private road, any permit 
issued by the County would not override the restrictions. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request.  Johnson provided the Board with a letter 
sent to the Planning Department by a property owner residing on the private road. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Ridge, to approve this request with the conditions of no 
more than 5 cars and no automotive repairs allowed.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
C. JAMES AND MARTHA GARNER, Bennett, North Carolina, are requesting a Special Use 

Permit to allow a Rural Planned Development (to allow 4th residence for family member) to be 
located on the corner of Lanes Mill Road/Lewis Brown Road on 11.40 acres, Pleasant Grove 
Township, Zoning District RM, Parcel ID # 8638439665. 
  
James Garner was present and said they have lived here for 24 years.  Garner said that this is 
the last daughter; the other two are already living here.  When questioned about the junk on the 
property, Garner said that they just haven’t hauled off the materials after tearing down an old 
home.   

  
Dorsett said that if he voted to approve this request, Garner would need to move the junk first.  
Craven agreed the junk should be moved before the permits are issued on the new home.  
Dorsett said the junk vehicles located at the second trailer should be moved out of sight of the 
road.  Garner said that he would move one of the junk cars off the property and the other two 
Gremlins would be moved behind the residence. 

  
Dorsett made the motion to approve with the condition that the junk vehicles are moved out of 
sight and the remainder of the junk cleaned up before the permits for the home are issued.  
Craven seconded this request and the motion passed unanimously. 
  

7. Proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment - Special Entertainment Overlay District. 
  

Johnson advised the Board that the Planning Department had recently received inquiries from 
individuals desiring to establish adult entertainment establishments in Randolph County.  Johnson said 
the specific inquiries had been for adult video/book stores and for adult dancing/juice bars.  Johnson said 
current Randolph County Zoning regulations do not specifically address adult entertainment 
establishments and would treat them the same as any other commercial activity located in the 
appropriate Highway Commercial county zoning district.  Johnson said that the lack of alcohol sales 



within Randolph County had probably been a reason why the County had not previously experienced an 
influx of adult entertainment businesses.  Johnson said that a county, by federal law, could not totally 
ban legally operating adult entertainment businesses from its jurisdiction.  However, local government 
could establish regulations intending to ensure that the adverse effects created by adult entertainment 
establishments are minimized and controlled. 

  
Johnson presented the Planning Board with proposed amendment to the County Zoning Ordinance 
creating a Special Entertainment Overlay District.  Johnson said the amendment would require a Special 
Entertainment Overlay District zoning classification requiring rezoning and public hearing.  The overlay 
district could only be applied to lands zoned Highway Commercial.  The proposed amendment would 
prevent the concentration of adult entertainment establishments by restricting their proximity to schools, 
churches, day-care facilities, youth camps, community centers, recreational/civic centers, hospitals, and 
any portion of a lot zoned residential.  Johnson said the overlay district requires a 1,500-ft. setback.  The 
proposed amendment would also establish a one-year period for any existing adult entertainment 
establishment classified as a “non-conforming use” to cease operations. 

  
Johnson said he would meet with County Attorney Alan Pugh to review the amendment prior to it 
submission to the Board of County Commissioners for public hearing and final approval by the 
Commissioners. 

  
Dorsett made the motion, seconded by Craven, that the proposed amendment to establish an Adult 
Entertainment Overlay District be recommended to the Board of County Commissioners for approval.  
The motion passed unanimously. 

  
8.                  The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m.  There were 38 citizens present for this meeting. 
  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

NORTH CAROLINA 
RANDOLPH COUNTY 

 


